VISION/MISSION

To Produce Automotive Wheels
and allied products of
International Quality Standard
of ISO 9002 and contribute
towards national economy by
import substitution, exports,
taxation, employment and
consistently compensate the
stake holders through stable

returns.
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MNOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty Filth Annual General Meeting of the Company
will be held at the Company's Registered Office, Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, District
Lasbella, Baluchistan, on Saturday, October 29, 2005 at 10:30 am. o ransact the following
business '

1 To confliem the minutes of the 24th Anmual Ceneral Meeting, held on October 23,
2004.

2. Taoreceive consider and adopt the Aodited Accounts for the vear ended June 30, 2005
together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon,

3. To approve the payment of Cash dividend. The Board of Directors has recommencded
payment of cash dividend @ 15 % i.e. Rs. 1.50¢ per share of Rs 10/ each for the year
ended June 30, 2005

4. To appoint Auditors for the year 20052006 and to fix their remmneration. The present
Auditors, Mis. Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and heing
cligible, offer themselves for reappointment. The Board of Directors has recommended
appointrment of M, Ford Bhodes Sidat Hyder & €0, Charered Accountants as Auditors
of the Company for the year 2005-2006,

Special Business

5. To approve the issue of honus shares in the ratio of 15 shares for every 100 shares held
(15%0) as recommended by the Board of Directors,

G. Ta consider the recommendation of the Board of Directars to place quarterdy accounts
of the Company on its website www bwheels.com instead of circulating the same by post
o the shareholders as allowed by Securities and xchange Commission of Pakistan, vide
SECP's circular Mo. 19, dated April 14, 2004,

7. To consider any other Business with Lthe permission of the Chair,

BY ORDER OFTHE BOARD

Irfan Ahmed Qureshi
Company Secreiary

Cretober 01, 2005
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MNOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Boaks of the Company will remain closed from Octoher 22, 2005 o
Crelober 29, 2005 (both days inchusive },

2. A member entitled o attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled (o appoint
a proxy to attend and vote for himfher, A proxy must be a member of the Company,

3. Aninstrument of proxy and the power of attormey or other authority (if any) under which
it is signed, or notarially cenified copy of such power of atorney, in order w be valid
must be deposited at the Head office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
time of the meeting.

4. Shareholders are advised to immediately notily of any change in their addresses 1o our
Shares Department, 1st Floor, State Life Building No. 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Karachi,

3. CDC Account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as Jaid
down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Comumission of Pakistan.

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder anddor the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticare his dentity by showing his original Mational ldentity Card
(NIC} or original passport at the time of altending the meeting . The shareholders registered
on CDS are also requested to bring their participants [ numbers and account number
in CDS5.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors reselution / power of atiorney with
Specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced {unless it has been provided earlier)
at the time of the meeling.

The proxy form shall be wimessed by two persons whose names, address and NIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form attested copies of NIC or the passport of the benelicial
owners and the proxy shall be furmished with the proxy form. The proxy shall produce
his original NIC or original passport at the time of meeting,

Transport will be provided to members from the Karachi Stock Exchange Building o
attend the meeting. Departure from Stock Exchange Building will be at 0830 a.m.

=
="
(]
=
u
=
—
=




—
-

=t
o
=
s
e

b)

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1884

This staternent sets out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted
at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders of Baluchistan Wheels Limited to be held
at 10:30 a.m. on Oetober 29, 2005 at the Registered office of the Company, main RCD
Highway, Hub chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan.

The Directors bhave recommended capitalization of Bs, 17,392,500 from the unappropriated
profit and reserve of the Company to enable issue of bonus shares in the ratio of 15 shares
for every 100 shares held, The Directors are interested in the business o the exient of
their entitlernent to bonus shares as shareholders. In this regard, if thought fit, 1o pass with
or without modification(s) the following resolution:

"RESOLVED that a sum of Rs, 17,392,500/ out of the unappropdated profit and free
reserve of the Company be capitalised and applied for the issue of 1,739,250 ordinary
shares of Rs, 10/ each and allotted as fully paid up bonus shares o the members of the
Company who are registered in the book of the Company as at Chetober 21, 2003, in the
prapartion of 15 shares for every 100 shares held and that such new shares shall rank
pari-passu with the existing shares of the Company excepl that they shall not qualify Tor
dividend for the year ended June 30, 2005,

"FURTHER RESCLVED that lor the purpose of giving effect o the above, the Directors
be and are hereby authorized 1o ake all necessary actions and (o seltle any question or
difficulty that may arise with regard to the distribution of the saild bonus shares or in the
pavmenl of sale proceeds ol the [raclional entitlements as lthey deem [it."

As allowed under the clrcular Mo, 19 dated April 14, 2004 from SECP and KSE notice
dated April 27, 2004 the Board of Directors have recommended o place Baluchistan
Wheels Limited first, second and third gquarterly accounts on company's website
www bwheels.com instead of sending the same to sharcholders by post to save a substantial
cost on printing ete, and to ensure timely availability of information o the shareholders,
The Directors approved o obtain consent from shareholders for placing the quarterly
accounts of the Company on its website waww bwheels.com. The Directors of the Company
have no direct or indirect interest in the matter, The Company will comply with all the
conditions given in SECP's said cireular No. 19 dated April 14, 2004, Following resolution
will be presented in the Annual General Meeting for approval of the shareholders,

" RESOLVED that the proposal to place quarterly accounts on the website of the Company
instead of circulating the same to the shareholders, be and is hereby approved”




DIRECTORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

‘fnu::-. ars are pleased 10 present Amm!%.g:qunts faat the j'emnded
Junz 30, 2005, X L

The yoar under review is ome of the years of gaod perfermance in tems of
producon, sales, profilabilig and in othes splenes of company’s Alins,
since yaur caomparty was alle 1 resolve its issue over its deposit and Ecanomic
Affairs Division loan with Mational Bank of Pakistan.

FIMAMNCIAL FERFORMANCE

Itis & matter of great pride that your company has achieved the highest-ever
production volume of 731,000 wheels as compared to 547, 000 Is last
poar. Due to increass in volume, the net sales durng the perlod Increased
y s, 256 millicn and toweched the highest-ever Rgure of Bs, 789 million as
compared o Be. 533 million which is 48% higher (han the last year. The
grass profitis s, L8S million a5 compared to Be 123 million in previous year.

Dgze to amendmernt in the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 by the Finance Act, B
2005, the U}:Ijr.m for asspssment under the presumptive regime has been g
withdspan, Your comparny has made a provision for eation of B 50 millien r
during the year &5 compared w0 22 million in the preceding year.

The profit after Exation -:Iu:lné.( the year stagd at s, 98 milllon as compared
to B, 51 million in the prece I11§ yoar. The profit would heve been Bs, 108
il iFibe above amendimcnt bad nol been made in e Gaalion law since
rour comparty lad again opted for presumptive @ax cegime during the perdod,

ut subsequently CER has withdrawn the above mentioned option with
retraspective effect and we Iniend to avail the option of presumpiive taxation
and ax a pradencea we hava fully provided for the taxation,
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PROPOSED DIVIDEMND AN BONUS

The Board of Directors have proposed a final
dividensd for the vear ended Jume 30, 2005
Bz, 1.50 per share 159 2004 Rs. 1.50 per
share} amcunting o Bs 17,39 million {2004:
Be 17.39 milliony. The Board has also
racommendad the issrance of 15 bonus shages
for every 100 shares held {15%) amounting
Iy Rs. 17.39 mi]!i?ﬁ {2004 - NIL} at their
meefing held on 23™ Sep, 2005 for approval
of meemibeers atl Annual General Mestn
in be held on 287 Coi, 2005, The Ananci
statements, however, do not reflect these
approprations in complisnee wit the revised
Foaerth Schedule to the Companies Ordinance,
1984 irefer 1o MNote, 4.1 b0 the aedited Brancial
stalements).

The comparafive Gnancial msults lor the year
2005 as against 2004 are as follows:

(Rupees in 0000

2005 2004
Sales THE983 533451
Crross Profil 16,0935 122,701
Ciperating Profit 134,200 31,154
Frofil belore Tax 148,571 72,569
Prosfit after Tax 98,121 ML6TH
Eaming per Share (Rs} 846 4.37
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The real Gross Domestic Product (GDF) of
the country’s econoimy grew by 8.4% as
against 6.4% last yvear, The agriculture sector
also achieved recovery by posting a growth
of 7.5%. The production of cotfon was
unprecedented (146 million bales).

L scale manufachoing also grew by 153.4%.

The car sales wers 127,309 urdls aimlumal
b0 86,674 units last vear. Salos of nucks/buses
werg 3,345 unils a5 compared o0 1868 units
last year. Sales of light commercial vehicles
were 25,056 wnils as compared o 14,933
units last year. Similady, farm iractors also
recorded a dse (o 43,578 units from 55,900
units, Our sales were TZ8.000 wheels
arnounting 1o K. YRS million as compared 1o
4T 000 wheels amounting w0 Bs, 533 million
last voar.

Product-wise, car wheel sales improved fo
Bs. 480 million (b 574 from Rs. 306 million
inthe previous year. Similarly, tckius and
tracior wheel sales have improved by 26% 1o
Es. 265 million from Bs. 211 million. The
expor sales were Bs. 10 million as compared
te Bs. 4 million in the previous voar.

HUMAM RESOLURCES

We finmly believe that our officers, stafl and
workforce is the backbone of cur husiness.
The management belleves in encouraging the
talented and dedicated employees, who are
frequesithy sent For trainkng at hoae and abroad
to update their professional and technical
skills. Direct and indirect rewards 1o the
weorkforce like Wodierof-the Month Award,
Haj Scheme, Special Health Allocation and
many other such benefits are in place. The
labrour laws are sticilly followed and your
management has successfully concluded
agresment with CBA for nexi 2 years.




SATETY, HEALTH & FNVIRONMENT

We are actively managing health and safety
risks associated with our manufacturing process
and are working towards improving our
procedures to reduce or control the risk of
accident or injury during work.

Apart from this, healthy activities of sports are
encouraged, and we have a cricket as well as
a football team. Every measure is being taken
to preserve nature and to maintain clean
environment at workplaces.

COMPANY'S CONTRIBUTION TO THE
ECONOMY OF THE COUNTRY

Your company being an import substitution
unit is contributing to the economy by saving
foreign exchange and Is very important
vendinﬁ industry for the auto assemblers.
During the period under review, your company
contributed to national exchequer by paying
sales tax, income tax ancd other indirect taxes
to the tune of Rs.16% million. Besides, it is
also providing employment opportunities (o
the local people residing in ﬁub and olher
adjoining areas,

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE AND
INANCIAL REPORTING TRAMEWORK

a. The financial statemnent, prepared by the
management of the company, present
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in

equity.

b. Proper books of accounts of the company
have been maintained,

TOTAL SALE (Rs. in Million)

THE

iy AL I 2003

2003 2005

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied except for changes
disclosed at note No. 4 in preparation of
the financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

. International Accounting Standards, as

applicable in Pakistan, have been [ollowed
in preparation of financial statements.

The system of internal control {s sound in
design and is effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of review will
continue and any weaknesses in controls
will be removed.

There are no significant doubis upon the
company’s ability o conlinue as going
COMCE.

There has been no material departure from
the best practices of corporate governance,
as detailed in the listing regulations.

Key operating and financial data lor last

six years in summarized form is annexed.

Dutstanding Taxes and Levies:
Please refer to Note No. 37 to the annexed
audited accounts,

The following is the value of investmenits
based on respective audited accounts:



SALE OF CAR WHEELS
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Mame of DNrector

Mr. Mubhammad Siddxgue Menon
Mr. Bazak H.M. Bengali

Me. Mubammad Irfan Ghani

Mr. Mohammed Ehalid AL

Mr. Anis Wehab fuberi

Syed Zubair Ahed

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi

Syed Liaguat Ali

The pantern of sharehobding s annexed,

Execurivie Providen

Furd Rs. 31 million
Non-Executive

Providem Fund Rs. 9 million
Gratiny Fund Fs. 18 millicn

Based on audited accounts as at June 30,
20,

k. Dwrirg the vear & meetings of the Board
of Directors weare held. Atendance by
cach Directer is a8 fellows:

Mo. of Meetings Artended
05

05 {resigned w.ef. 8.6.05)

00 {joined welf §G.05)

m. Purchase of shares by CECL Direciors, Company Secretary, CFC, their spouses and minor

children s given belaw:

. Mr. Mukammad Idan Ghani [Direciorh

2. Mr. Razak HM. Bengali [Direccor)

3. Mrs. Kawsar Iefan (W/o M. Muhammad

- Irfan Glyani)
STATEMENT OF ETHICS AN BUSINESS
PRACTICES

The Board regulady reviews (e company s
strzlegic direction. Annual plans and pefformance
targets for business are sef and are reviewed hillr
the Board in the light of the company's overa

objectives, The Board is comanitted 1o maintain
Tnigh standards of F,md COIPOEAIR GOVEMance,
A a leading wheel manufactiie, epatation o
high ethical standards is central to business
suceess. Treatment of stakeholders with mspecy,
COuresy and compelence, ensuring clear
comsciousness in all decisions and operations
ancl an this basis eodde of business principles has
been developed and acknowl by each
Director and employes of the company.

Me, of Shares Purchased
52200
52 E00
2000




COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNAMCE

The requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance sel oul by the Karachi Stock
Exchange in its listing Rules, relevant [or the
vear ended June 30, 2005 have been
complied with. A statement lo this effect is
annexed with the report.

FUTURE QOUTLOOK

The gap between supply and demand of
vehicles still remains and the production
capacily is still far short of demand, although
the assemblers have enhanced their
production, and they are continuing to do so.

The increase in automobile production has a
positive impact on vending industry, including
Baluchistan Wheels Limited, and we are also
meeting their demand. However, recent
concession by the Government (o import
second-hand vehicles under baggage/gift
scheme will discourage the current pace of
capacity expansion of assemblers which may
also affect the expansion plan of vendors,
including Baluchistan Wheels Limited. [t will
not be out of place to mention here that any
country which has achieved major growth in
industry has focused on auto industry e.g.
USA, Japan, Korea, India, Thailand, etc. and
their gap between CBU and CKD duties has
enabled them to grow, and in Pakistan the
gap is minimun.

SALE OF TRUCKE/BUSTRACTOR WHEELS
(City in 000

L3l
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However, we at Baluchistan Wheels Limited
have tried our best to meet the demand of
assemblers by addition of new machines,
better production planning, ele. and [or this,
we are also planning to enhance capacitly,
and hope that the Government will adopt
consistent and business friendly policy.
Despite this, we are confident that the price
of locally assembled brand new car is still
competitive with the brand new completely
built-up unit {imported car) of same
specifications. The continuous pressure on oil
prices will also have impact on Pakistan’s
economy, resulting in increase in prices,
including utilities, eic.

NEFP AND RELATED MATTERS

We are pleased to Inform you that Baluchistan
Wheels Limited and National Bank of Pakistan
have reached a compromise on our deposit
and EAD loan whereby the entire amount
lving with the Nazir of the High Court of Sindh
has been utilized towards settlement of EAD
loan, Thus, our suit for recovery ol deposit
has also been setiled amicably, besides the
settlement of our long-term loan from EAL.
This has ended a long ltigation on the above
issues between NBP and BWL.

Under the compromise arrangement, a sum
of Rs, 156,20 million was initially determined
by the MNazir of the [igh Court of Sindh. as
the amount of principal and interest thereon,
and Baluchistan Wheels Limited paid the
differential amount of Rs. 2,56 million to NBP,
thus making a total of Rs. 158.76 million.
Subﬁ&quentﬁf. it transpired that another sum
of Rs. 2.84 million is also payable on the funds
lying with the Nazir of the Court, which
was also paid to NBP, and now this amount
is receivable from NEP.



FROFIT AFTER TAX
(Rs. in Million}

2002 2003

A0 2004 2005
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Stricily without prejudice to above, both BWL
and NBP undertake to proceed in the cases
on the payment of Privalization Commission,
so that the same are disposed of al the earliest.
The management and its Legal Counsel are

hopeful that the ultimate oulcome
of the matter will be in company’s favour, as
explained in Note 28,

IDIRECTORS AND BOARD ALDIT
COMMITTEE

During the period under review, NIT nominee,
Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi resigned from
the Board and in his place, Syed Liaguat Al
has filled the casual vacancy.

The Board welcomes the new Director and
wishes to acknowledge the valuable services
rendered by Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi, especially
in the areas of Mational Bank of Pakistan
matters, internal audil, accounts, corporate
overnance and overall policy making and its
implernentation during his stay on the Board.
His associalion with BWL will long be
remembered, and we wish him good luck,
health and prosperity. Similarly, Syed Liaguat
Ali has also rep acer{ Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi
aBs a Eﬂﬁmher of the Audit Committee of the
QA

AUDITCRS

The Audit Commitiee has recommended to
appoint Mss. Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, for re-appointment at
the time of Annual General Meeting (AGM).
The present Auditors, M/s. Ford Rhodes Sidat
Hyder & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire
and offer themselves for re-appoiniment subject
to their eligibility under the law at the time of
appointment at the AGM.

INTERMNAL AUDITORS

The internal audit function has been
outsourced to M/S Anjum Asim Shahid
Rehman Chartered Accountants due to the
resignation of Mr. Asad Saeed who has left
the company for hetter prospects.

TRANSFER PRICING

Your company has fully complied with the
best practices on transler pricing as contained
in the listing regulation I\ﬂiﬁﬂ of the Karachi
Stock Exchange excepl the sale of cars (o
the officers and executive directors at WDV
as per the company policy.

BASIC EARNING PER SHARE

Based on the net profit for the current year,
the earning per share was Rs, 8.46 (Rs. 4.37
year 2004).

ACKNOWLIDGEMENT

We thank our valued customers for their
patronage of our products, and are pleased to
record our appreciation [or the services
rendered by the staflf members and workers
and look forward to their continued efforts
and dedication,

Fer and on Behalf of the Board

Muhammad Siddigque Memon
Chairman

Razal H.M. Bengali
Chief Executive

Karachi: September 23, 2005

Miniz

Mr. Jehas ATV,




"FORM 34"
AS AT JUNE 30, 2005

SHARBHOLDER'S FROM S 10 N, OF SHARES

429 1 1{H) 21,032

T73 10 S(H) 200,505

111 501 1000 86 485

116 1001 S5004) 234,274

15 5001 100000 113,500

1 10001 15000 54,500

2 15001 20004 39,500

4 25001 0000 102,775

5 30001 35000 95,500

2 a5001 4000 72,900

1 A0001 45004 43,000

1 45001 50000 50,000

1 G001 TOOM) 6,000

1 TOOO01 TS0 70,500

1 95001 100000 100,000

1 105001 110004 106,000

1 115001 I_EDDEH) 118,000

1 165001 170000 166,625

1 200001 205000 203,200

1 205001 210004 200,075

1 215001 220000 218,250

1 22500 230000 228,300

1 240001 245004 241,000

2 245001 250000 497.150

1 285001 200000 280,125

1 325001 3000 FET.100

1 435001 440000 440,000

1 615001 G200 618,550

1 G35001 GAQO) GAT BZ25

1 725001 730000 728,300

1 1115001 112000641 1,115,500

1 1285001 1290006) 1,288,900

1 2810001 2815000 2,810,625

1,483 11,595,000

SHAREHOLDER'S

CATEGORY SIS ST PERCENTAGE
INDIVIDUALS 1.443 6,383,500 55.054
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 21 1,426,150 12.300
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 8 2)822.600 24.343
INSURANCE COMPANIES 4 518700 4.473
INVESTMENT COMPAMNIES 4 3,700 0.032
LEASING COMPANY 1 440000 3795
OTHERS 2 150 0.003
1,483 11,595,000 100000

=
="
(]
=
=
—
-}
=




o

Pt
P
g

AS OF: 30/06/2005

1 N O SHARES FERCENT %
CATECORIES OF SHAREHOLDER'S SHARHIOLDER HELD
RELATED PARTIES 2 1,077,825 9.30%
1 M. M/S DYNAMIC SECURITIES 637,825
2 M/S. SECURITY LEASING CORPORATION LIMITED 440,000
NIT AND ICP 5 3116475 26.88%
1 M/S. NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN, TRUSTEE DEPTT. 2,810,625
2 M/S. STATE LIFEINSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 289,125
3 M/S. STATE LIFEINSURANCE CORF. OF PAKISTAN 8000
4 MSS. INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 8525
5 M/S. INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN KHI 200
DIRECTORS, CEO & THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR - 8 3,432,900 20.61%
CHILDREN
1 MR MR MUHAMMAL SIDDIQUE MEMON 1,289,300
2 MRS, MEHTAB BIBI 66,500
3 MR. RAZZAK HM. BENGALL 618,550
1 MRS, GUL BANO 241,000
5 MR MUHAMMAD IRFAN GHANI 967,400
6 MRS, KAUSAR IRFAN 247 650
7 MR MOHAMMED KHALID AL 2,000
8 MR IRFAN AHMED QURESHI 500
EXECUTIVES 2 : :
PUBLIC SECTORS COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS
BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS , 11 228,525 1.97%
NON BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTION, INSURANCE -
COMPANIES, MODARABAs, AND MUTUAL FUNDS
1 M/S. ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND 1,425
2 MSS. BANK OF SCOTLAND 625
3 M/S. BANKERS TRUST 75
4 M/S. MORGAN STANLEY BANK LUXEMBOURG 1,150
5 MS. MORGAN STANLEY TRUST COMPANY o225
6 MS. CROSBY SECURITIES PTE LTD. 725
7 M/S. SOMERS NOMINEES (FAR EAST} LTD. 600
8 M/S. NATIONAL DEV. FINANCE CORP. INVESTERS o225
9 M. PRUDENTIAL INVESTEMENT BANK LIMITED 500
10 M/S. EFU GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED 200,075
11 M/S. EFU LIFE ASSURANCE LTD. 12,500
Bal. C/F 26 7,855,725 67.75%




Bal BF 26 7835723 BY. 7%

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING TEN PERCENT OR MORE-
VOTING INTEREST [N THE COMPANY

*== TOTAL *#** 1483 11,555,000 100.00%

INDIVIDUALS 1430 232715 1995%
OTHERS 2 1426500 1230%
1 MS MILLAT TRACTORS LIMITED 1,115,500
2 MS. BOLAN CASTINGS LIMITED 250,000
3 ME DM SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 37,000
1 M. SATTAR CHINGY SECURITIES PVT LTD) 10,000
M JAN MOHD, ALATIF NINL & SONS (PVD) LTD 3,000
6 MS. ZILLION CAPITAL SECURITIES (PVT) L1D, 1,825
T ME PROGRESSIVE INV, MANAGEMENT (PVT) LTD. 1,750
8 MS. VALIKA ART FABRICS LTD 1,250
& MS Y5 SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT) LTD, 500
10 MIS. ACESICURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 500
11 M8, 1 1 KODVAVE SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 500
12 MIS. CAPITAL VISION SECURITIES (PVT) L1D), 500
13 MS, 5.2 SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 475
14 MIS. INTERMARKET SECURITILS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 250
15 M/S, INVEST CAPITAL & SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 230
16 MIS. M, NATIONAL MOTORS LIMITED 200
17 MIS. MEGA SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 200 -
18 MS. LOADS LIMITED 200 z
19 M'S. TRUSTEES ARVABAI&FAKHRUDDIN MEMORIAL FDN 150 3
20 MSS. GENERAL MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD 125 7
21 MSS. DOSSLANIS SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 125 5
22 MJS. GENERAL INVEST. & SECURITIES {PVT) LTD, 125 =
23 MSS. SH, BUKHARI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 73 =
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WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the
Cude{ contained in the listing regulations Mo. 37 of the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of
establishing a Immework ol good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in
compliance with the best practices of the Code.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner;

1,

10.

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive direclors
and representation of minority interesis on its Board of Directors (BOLDY). At
present BOIY includes three non-executive Direciors.

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more
than ten listed companies including this Company.

All the resident Directors of the Company are registered as (ax payers and none
of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFl ar
MEBFI or, being a member of siock exchange, has been declared as a defaulier by
that stock exchange,

I:Juwrini3 the year, one casual vacancy occurred in the BOD on gth June 2005,
was filled up by the Directors within 30 days thereol. The Company has filed necessary
statutory returns in this regard.

The Company has prepared and circulated a "Statement of Ethics and Business
Practices”, which has been signed by all the Directors and Employees of the
Company.

. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement overall cmz&omt@ strategy and

silgniﬁr:ant policies of the Cmnﬁan}r. A complete record of particulars of significant policies
alongwith the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of BOD have been duly exercised and decisions on material
transactions, and signilicant matters are documented by a resolution passed by
BOD, including appointment and determination of remuneration and ierms and
conditions of employvment of the Chairman, CEQ, COO, CFO/ Company Secrelary
and ather Executive Directors, have been taken by BOD,

. The meetings of BOD were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,

by a director elected by BOD for this purpose and BOD met at least ance in every
quarter. Written notices of the BOD meetings, along with the agenda were circulated
at least seven days before the meeting. The minutes of the meeting were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

The BOD is in the chess of arranging orientation courses lor its directors to

further apprise them of their duties and responsibilities.

During the year Head of Internal Audit resigned and now Internal Audit Functions
has been out sourced which was duly approved by the BOD. No new appointment
of CFOCompany Secretary has been made during the vear.




11.

12,
13,
14,
15,

16,

17.

18

19.

20.

The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance wilh the
requirements of the Code and fully describes the salient matters required to be
disclosed,

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEC and
CFO before the approval of BOD,

The Directors, CEO and Executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding,

The Company has complied with all the corporate and fnancial reporting
requirements of the Code.

The BOD has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises three members, of whom
wo are MNon-Execulive Directors including the Chairman of the committee,

The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once in every quarter
prior 1o approval of interim and final resulis of the Company as required by the
Code. The terms of reference to the Committee have been formed and advised
to the Committee for compliance.

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. Anjum Asim Shahid Rehman,
Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experdenced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and their

representatives are involved in the internal audit function on full time basis.

. The statutory auditors ol the Company have conlirmed that they have been given

a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the pariners of
the Firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares ol the Company
and that the Firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by {ICAP).

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not heen appointed
o pravide other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the
auditors have conflinmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We conlirm all other material peinciples contained in the Code have been complied
with as stated above, except that presently the position of the CFO and Company
Secretary is held by the same person. The decision in respect of the position of
CFO and Company Secretary has been taken by BOD keeping in view the size
of the Company and orientation courses for the Directors will be conducted during
the current year.

MUHAMMAD SIDTIOUE MEMOMN RAZAK H. M. BENGALI
Chairman Chief Executive

Karachi, September 23, 2005
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WITH THE BEST PRACTICE ©ON TRANSFER PRICING

The Company has fully complied with the best practices on Transfer Pricing as contained
in the regulation Mo. 38 of the Karachi Stock Exchange. Further, certain lixed assets of
the Company are sold to the Executives & Working Directors at book value as per the
Company Policy as disclosed in note 5.1.3 of the Financial Stalements,

COin behall of the Board of Directors
MUHAMMALD SIDDIQUE MEMON RAZAK H. M, BENGALL
Chairman Chiel Executive

Karachi. September 23, 2005




ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code
of Corporate Governance {the code) applicable (o the Company for the year ended June 30,
2005 prepared by the Board of Direciors of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (o comply with the
listing Regulation No. 37 of the Karachi Stock Exchange where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be
ohjectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not, A review is limiled
primarily 1o inquires of the Company personnel and review of various documents prepared
by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obiain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control system sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We have not carried out any special review of the internal control system
to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Board's statlement on internal cantrol
covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal contrals.

Based on our review nothing has come to our attention which causes us (o believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code elfective for the period ended
June 30, 2005,

FORD BHODES SIDAT HYDER & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi: September 23, 2005
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We have audited the annexed Balance Sheet of BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED as at June
30, 2005 and the related profit and loss account, cash Mow stalement ancd statement of changes
in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the vear then ended and we state
that we have ohtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of aur knowledge
and helief, were necessary for the purposes of aur audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of
internal control, and prepare and present the above said staremenis in conforminy with the
approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
Car responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supparting the amounts and disclosures in the
above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimaies made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above
said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and,
after due verification, we report thar:

(a} in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required
by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

(b} in our opinion:

i} the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in
agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting
policies consistently applied:

ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

iii} the business conducted, investmenis made and the expenditure incurred during the
vear were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

{c} in our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given
to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash Now statement and statement of
changes in equily together wilh the notes forming part thereol conform with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the infformation required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a tue and
[air view of the state of the Company's allairs as at June 30, 2005 and of the profit, its
cash [lows and changes in equity for the year then ended: and

{d} in our opinion, Zakat deductible al source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
XV of 1980} was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under Section 7 of that Ordinanee,

FORD RHODES SIDAT HYDER & COL.
Chartered Acconntants

Karachi: September 23, 2005




AS AT JUNE 30, 2005

Nate 2005 2004
i Restated
NON CURRENT ASSETS Ripees i 000)
Fixed assels g
Lomg term mg;nﬂimts 7
Long term loans and advances 8
Long term deposits )
Defermed tax assed 10
CURRENT ASSETS i i
Stones. e parts and loose oo/ 11
Sluck-hﬁra;depa 12
Trade debts 13
Yorte dupcsss e o i
ravche: o i fl e prapayimeants

Interest accmed BIRERNE 16
Oither receivables 17
Temm deposit 18
Income tax refunds due from the government - net
Bank balances 19
TOTAL ASSETS
BOUITY AMD LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Autharized [%;iml e

15,000,000 (2004: 15,000,000 ordinary shares of B 100 each 150,000 150,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 20 5.950 115,950
Resenves and 201,344
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES )
Liabilities t assets subject to inance lease 21 4.316
Long term deposits 22 17z
gt s .

rade and other [

Mark-up accmetra}ra 24
Shoit term bnrrnwm% 25
Current portion of liablites against assets subject

o finance loase 21
Current portion of long term deposits 22
Orwverdoe portion of long term loan 26
Frovision for taxation 27
COMNTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
The annexed note numbers 1 o 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

MUHAMMALD SIDDIOUE MEMOIMN RagAK H. M, BENGALI
Chairman Chiel Executive

Karachi. September 23, 2005
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Turnowver - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses

Ciher income

Finance cost
Other charges

Gain an litigation settlement
Profit before taxation
Taxcation

Met profit for the year

Basic earnings per share (Rupees)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

MNate

31
32

33

34
35

36

a7

2005

2004

Rupees in 000

533,43
410,750

122,701

8,080
36,193

44,273
2726
81,154

3,441
5,144

8.585

72,369

72,568
21,804

MhGTS

4.37

The annexed note numbers 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MEMON

Chairman

Karachi. September 23, 2005

RAZAK H. M. BENGALI

Chiel Executive




FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

{Rupees in 0007
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 39 80,456 39,619
Income tax paid :'ﬂiig ) (11,897)
Financial charges paid (8,167) {2,990)
Gratuity paid 8 (630)
Provident fund paid {1.150)
Long term loan and advances (248
Long term deposits (assef) 592
Long term depaosits (liahility)

Met cash inflow Trom operating activities
CASH TLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure - tangible {8.641) (10,961)
- iniangible S 2.568)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assers 1.726 2,901
Profit received on deposit aceounis - 135 98
Term deposit 107,236 =
Dividend received L 50 60
Met cash used in investing activities - 100,506 (L0 ATO)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of liabilities under finance lease (13,710
Payment of EAD loan -
Dividend paicl 23,01
Met cash used in financing activities Eﬁ,?zg!
Met increase / {decrease) in cash equivalents ;
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year . 23,634
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 40 . 15,908 (#a1)

The annexed note numbers 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial staiements.

MUHAMMAD SIDTIOUE MEMOMN RAZAK H. M. BENGALI
Chairman Chief Executive

Karachi, September 23, 2005
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FOR THEYEP;R ENDED JUNE 30, 20[]5

...................... Reserves
Linrealisacd
Iseued, gain on
suthscribed availabla-  Accomu-
and paid-up for-sale- lated Total
Share capital Genaral investments  profit  reserves  Total
(Rupesas in "DO0)
Balance at June 30, 2003
as previously reported 115,950 101,498 485 48,561 150,554 266,504
Effect of change in accounting poli
AppTﬂ]]Ilﬁlf:;?&]l’ﬂ'lﬁ memdﬁe Hﬂﬂﬂ&
eclared subsequent o the year emd
- Diividdend 20% - - - 23180 23180 23190
Balance at June 30, 2003 - restated 115,050 101.498 485 TLLFR1 173,744 280684

Effect of change in accounting policy -
Appropations for ile vear ended [une 30, 200%
declared subsequent o the year ehd

- Divhdend 20%

et profit for the year
Linrealizsed gain an available-for-sale 1mﬁmmnﬁ

C(23.190) (23.190) (23.190)

: EGE?E 50,675
115 115 115

Balance at June 30, 2004 - restated 115,950 G610 99,236 201,344 317.204
Balance at June 30, 2004

as previously reported 115,950 160,000 G610 23341 183,951 200901
Effect of change In accounting

Apprﬂpilalioﬂs fior 1lse vear emdke 30, 2004

declared subsequent fo the year end

- Dividend 15% - 17,383 17,393 17,393

- Transfer to general reserves (5, B0 2) B - . .
Balance at June 30, 2004 - restaled 115850 101,498 G610 99,236 201,344 317,294
Effect of charge in accountin

Approgsiations for e year ended %ﬂﬂ& 30,2004

dleclared subsequent i the year el

- Dividend 15% . (17,593 (17,393 (17,393

- Transfer to general resenves 58,502 (58, 502) 3 3
Net profit for the vear - DH.3H0 GE.380 48380
Loss on avallable-for-sale mvestmenis - - (29 - (24 (24
Balance at June 30, 2005 115950 160.000 581 121,730 282.311 308,261

The annexed note numbers 1 to 49 form an tegral pant of these financial statements.

MUHAMMAD SIDDRIOQUE MEMON
Chairman

Karachi. September 23, 2005

RAZAK H. M., BEMGAL]
Chiefl Executive




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

1. S5TATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Baluchistan Wheels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on June 1§,
1980. The Enm;an}' is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of automaotive wheel
rims for trucks, buses, tractors, cars and mini commercial vehicles. The Company is
listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated
atl Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan.
2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Accounting Standards (1ASs) as notilied under the provisions of the Ordinance.
Wherever the requirements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SEC) differ with the requirements of these standards,
the requirements of the Ordinance ar the requirements of the said directives take
precedence,

3, ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for investment in securities and Investment property which are shown at Tair
value as required under TAS-39 “Financial Instriments: Recognition and Measurement”,
and [AS f:l(él “Investment Property” respectively.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 Change in accounting policy

During the vear, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan substituted
the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Ondinance, 1984, effective fiom the financial
vear ending on or after July 5, 2004, This has resulied in the change in accountis
palicy pertaining to the recognition of dividends and other appropriations declare
subsequent to the year end. Dividends and other appropriations to general reserve
are now recognised in the year in which these are declared. Up until the previous
f,'ear, dividends declared and appropriations made after the balance sheet date but
efore the financial statements were authorised for issue, were recognised as of
the balance sheet date,

Effect of change in accounting policy

The change in accounting policy has been accounted [or retrospectively and
comparative information has been restated in accordance with the benchmark
treatment specified in 1AS - 8 "Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Fundamental Errors
and Changes in .*-'g.{:vr!mmriliﬁ Policies". Had there been no change in accounting
policy, the unappropriated profit carried forward wounld have been lower by
Hs. 34.786 million (2004:Rs.75.895 million and the liability for proposed dividend
seneral reserve and reserve for issue of bonus shares would have Eeen higher by
Bs. 17,393 million [2004: Rs.17.3%3 million] Bs. NIL [2004: Rs.58 502 million]
and Rs. 17.393 million {2004 : Rs. NIL) respectively, The elfect of change in
accounting policy has been reflected in the comparative balance sheet amf' the
statement of changes in equity, The change in accounting policy has not
resulted in any change in the net profit for the current year.

Further, the balance of accumulated profit as ar June 30, 2003 has been increased
by Rs. 23.190 million which is the amount of the adjustment relating o periods
prioe o June 30, 2003
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4.2 Fined assets
4.2, 1 Property plant and equipment
Chwned

Cperating assets are siaied at cost less accumulated depreciation and accunulated
impairment losses il any except for the freehold land which is stated at cost,

Depreciation i charged (o income applying the reducing balance method except
for computers which are depreciated on straight line method at the rates stated in
note 5,1, 1. With eflect [rom the cument gear depreciation on additions is charged
from the gﬁy an asset is pul to use and on deletions up to the day the asset is
disposed off.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to Income as and when incurred.
Major renewals and improvements are capitalised.

Gain or loss on disposal of operaling property, plant and equiprent is included

in income currently.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s riy, plant and equipment are reviewed
ai cach halance sheet daie (o determine w r there is any inclication of impainment.
If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated and
impairment loss is charged o income currently.

Leasad

The Company accounts for fixed assets acquired under finance leases by recording
the asseis and the related lability at the amounts which are determined on the
basis of the discounted value of minimum lease payments, Financial charges are
allocated to the accounting perod in a manner so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged o income
applying the same basis as for owned assets.

Capital work-in progress

These are stated at cost less impairment losses, il any, and represent expenditures
connecled with specific assets incurred during the construction / erection period.
These are transferred (o specific assers as and when assets are available for use,

1.2, 2 Intangible assels

Research and development costs are charged to income currently as incurred,
except for developrment costs that relate to the design and testing of new or i
malerials, products or processes, which are recognised as an asset to the extent
that such asset meets the recognition criteria mentioned in [AS 38 - “Intangible
Assets”.

Development costs are amortised from the date of commeretal production of the
product or from the date the process is pul inio use. Such costs are amortsed on
a steaight line basis over their useful lives, not exceeding five years,
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value determined annually by an independent
registered valuer. Fair value is based on current prices in an active market for similar

operty in the same location and condition. Any gain or loss arising [rom a change in
}Ja(it value is taken (o income currently,

Investments
Held-to-maturity

Investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and ability ©
hold ta maturity, are classified as held-to-maturity. Such investments are initially recognised
at cost and subsequently remeasured at amortised cost, Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, over the period (o maturily,
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition/impairment in value of such investments is
taken to income currently.

Available-for-sale

Investments that are not held for rading bul may be sold in response (o the need lor
liquidity or change in market rates are classified as available-for-sale. Tnvestments in
?unted equily securities are initially recorded at cost and subsequently remeasured at
air value, The resulting sain or loss is recognised directly as a component of equity until
the investment is sold, or otherwise disposed off, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, at which time. the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity
is taken o income,

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at weighted average cost less provision for obsolescence.
Stock-in-trade

Raw materials and components except for those in transit are valued at lower of weighted
average cost and Met Realisable Value (NRV),

Work in process is valued at lower of average manufacturing cost and Net Realisable
Value (N'E

Finished goods are valued at lower of average manufaciu ITE cost and NRV. Average
manufacturing cost comprises the cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on normal capacity.

Swock in ransit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred
therean.

Scrap stocks are valued at NRV,

MRV signifies the estimated selling ﬂce in the ordinary course of business less cost of
completion and costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

Pravision is made for ohsolete inventory based on management's judgment.
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4.7 Trade debrs

Trade debis are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less pravision for
doubiful debts, When the recovery of the amount Is considered uncertain by the
management, a provision is made for the same. Bad debis are written-oll as incurred,

4.8 Loans, advances and other recejvables

These are stated at cost less provision for any doubtlul receivables,
4.9 Taxation

Current

The provision for taxation is based on axable income at the current rates of taxation
after considering the rebates and tax credits available, if any, or one hall percent of the
turnover whichever is higher.

Deferved

Deferred tax is garwided using the liabilily method, on all temporary dilferences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred rax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax assets and umised tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available agains which the deductible temporary dilferences, carry-forward
of unused tax assers unused tax losses can be ufilised.

The -::arryinﬁnmunt of deferred tax assels is reviewed al each balance sheet date and
reduced o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all ar part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured ai the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is setiled, based on tax rates {and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacled at the balance sheet date,

4.10 Trade and other payables

These are carried at cost which is the Fair value of the consideration o be paid in the
future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result al']éast evenis, it is probable that an ouillow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of the amount
ol the obligation can be made.

4.12 Provision for warranty

The management estimates al each balance sheet date a liability thal could arise as a
result of the company's obligation o repair and replace products under warranty.
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From the current year the management has decided to create a provision of six months'
warranty on the sale of wheels at the rate of 2% of net turnover, No provision was
considered necessary in prior years as the management did not anticipate the amount
of actual warranty expense 0 be material. Further, in prior years warranties were
accounted for as incurred, Had there been no provision during the vear, the profit after
tax would have been higher and irade and other payvahles would have heen lower by
Rs. 8395 million respectively. The above provision has not heen discounted, as the
effect of discounting 15 not considered 10 materially affect the provision for the year,

4.13 Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at the time when the mmigily becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the insteument and are derecognised in case of
assels, when the contractual rights under the instrument are realised, expired or surrenderecd
and in case of liability, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Any gain / loss on the recutf,nilian and derecognition of the fnancial assets and labilities
is taken w income currently,

4.14 Offsetting of financial assets or liahilities

A financial asset and a financial liability are off-set and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet if the company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
armounts and intends elther to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simulianeously.

4,15 Foreign currency lransaclions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into mpees at the rates of exchange
approximating those appearing on the dates of ransactions, Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are iranslated into rupees at the rates of exchange
approximating those prevailing al the balance sheet date. Any resulling gain or loss
arising from changes in exchange rates is taken (o income currently.

4,16 Stall retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Compan:{ rafes an arpmved and funded delined gratuity scherme for all permanent
employees w ve completed the minimam qua]jfyirgg perilgi of service for enlitlement

of gratuity. The contributions to the scheme are made in accordance with the independent
actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as of June 30, 2005
using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains are recognised and spread forward
over average remaining service lives of the employees in excess of the following cormi
limits, whichever is higher:

- 10 percent of the present value of defined benefit obligations: and
- 10 percent of the lair value of plan asseis

Defined contribution plan

The Company ug»raxes an agpmved defined contributory provident fund scheme for all
rmanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service.
Eual contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate

10 percent of basic salary.

=
i
oy
(]
=
=
jur:
=
=
—
|




Compensated absences

Provision for compensated absences is made to the extent of the value of accrued
ahsences of the employees ai the balance sheet date using their current salary levels as

per Company's policy,

4.17 Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties are hased on the policy that all transactions between
the company and the related parties are carried out al arm's length except for the sale
of vehicles 1o key management personnel at book value as per the company's palicy,
These prices are determined in accordance with the methods prescribed in the Companies
Chrdinance, 1984,

4.18 Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised upon passage of title (o the customers, which generally coincides
with physical delivery.

Scrap sales are recognised on physical delivery to customer,
Dividend income is recognised when right to receive the dividend is established.

Return on Defence Saving Certificates is recognised on a fime proporiion hasis taking
into account the effective yield on investment,

Prafit on deposit accounts is recagnised an an accerual basis.
4.1% Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprlse current and
deposit accounts with banks nel ofl shorl term bormowings.

5. FIXED ASSETS

Note 2005 2004
(Rupees in "0007
Property, plant and equipment 5.1 i Q,Elﬁ 140,170
Intangible 5.2 2,822 4,339

1f1.43§ 144,509
5.1 Property, plant and equipment
167,616 140,170
000

Ciperating property, plant and equipment H.
5 A5 =
_ 168,616 140,170

Capital work-in-progress
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5.1.1 Operating property, plant and equipment

COET DEPFRECIATION
Foomaihisd tedugment Aocemulzed Book
IM,! Addtkm h.:%] $%I [l.d.!kidu:d:f L:%D. :.!H.m -1 mlg:'eﬂm
e S RO S ﬁ-’% e %
B 1 B (1T M LI T 111 [ e
Crwmed
Land - freehald 2556 - S g g . BE5g
Buslliding s Ereshald Bl A7 262 1537 " 48790 23117 1287 o BlAM 24595 S& 1D
Plant asdl ewachinery 413,124 1834 00 ARETTS 24802 L1230 1572 33704 BOAED  10& 20
Blecrrical lestallatines 1208 - ©AER W0FSE 14 - LEES 1203 10
Furaiherr: and gitilngs ett 108 - 580 1804 174 - 1474 1410 (1]
Qlfiee equipments 4780 50 - 3030 FA00 i ] - ET4E A0S
Cormputers ERTES 2TE - JR1G 310 144 - F249 ART
Wehlcles L1206 445 3500 11407 G2EE 17001 1256 6709 4504
(2874 124400
Library boaks 4 : : 4B 1 . a a
HERA4] TAH] D300 SLLI0E 3TEASE L4H10  RH2E 30792 123306
13,874 124400
Leagad
Plant azd machiney LE2A4 arzm 158000 43664  T03F D56 - 3716 19448 10
1572
Wehiclns GERG  BA00 A0 GASS  LAB RS - ZAdd 4382 m)
11,2506
L&8349 41420 18300 50659 4516 4BT1 IZBEE) 6359 44500
2005 SleAED 45661 - ABLTGT ITRAI0 19781 B & 8 5 A £ T
[RE: L] 124400
#0014 SOTAS) AT - BIGEE0 AR LTA0A . ATGAIO 140,170
15.738) 14,728

5.1.2Depreciation is allocated as under:

Mate Percentage

Cost of sales 30 75
Distribution cost 3l 5
Administrative expenses 32 20




5.1.3 Details of disposal of operating property, plant and equipment

Particulars Cost Acoumeked Book  Sale Gainfilos) Beande ol Particulars of
tepreciation walue  proceeds [note 33 disposal purchaser
e {Ruipees In thousands)

Vehicles

Skl Alls Fatrs 146 96 6 . Company pelicy M. [alees Akldar
{Mlgr RELI)

Swzakl Cullus | 577 ATE 144 4500 251 Terler Mr. Abidul Basit

Toyola Surf 2,560 1,777 T83| 783 - Company palicy M Siddique Meman
o halrmany)

Suzuki Mehran | 250 41 339 380 A1 | Inswrance Clalm BFU general Insurance:

Handa Motor

Cyele CIMTO] 65 44 17 17 Company palicy  Mr. Amir Siddique

3874 A0 14M LTE &

5.1.4 During the year, the company changed its method of computation of
depreciation on tangible lixed assets whereby, with eflect lrom the cumrent
year, depreciation on additions is charged from the day in which an asset
irzilimr to use and an deletions up 1o the day asset is disposed off, (© beter

ect the pattern ol utilisation of economic benefils derived from the assets,
as against the previous method of charging full year's depreciation in the
vear of addition with no depreciation charged in the year of disposal,

The effect of this change in accounting estimate on profic before taxation for
the current year is Bs. 2,207,663, Had the company not macde the above
change, depreciation charge lor the year would have been higher by
s, 2,207,663 and profit hefore taxation for the cument year and unappropriated
profit would have been lower by Rs, 2,207 663,

2.1.5 CAPITAL WORK-IN-FROGRESS
Plant and machinery 1,000 525

Less: Impairment loss * = 525
| "-'l’inw?- X
* Pravision for impairment has been writien off during the year.
5.2 Intangible
COST AMORTISATION
Accumulted Acciinmilaed Book vahe
i jmatu jmﬂi Char 13"5:- IH%!J, i
' e bl . une Ak e TiE
B A VT o frtnoea 205 RS %
————— e [RupEes I thousand] ——- e
Development costs - 2005 7,585 - 75EF %246 1517 4783 BE 20

-EDd 5017 2488 TBER LTE9  LGBIT @6 4330 I

5.2.1 Development costs include the cost of material, direct labour and appropriate
portion of overheads. Amortisation of development cosis is charged to the
cost of sales each vear,

-
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G, INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Represents leasehold lands siated in Karachi at Lasbella (measuring 506 square yards)
and Lyari (measuring 1141 square vards) having cost of Rs.4.51 million and Rs,3.38
million respectively. The title of the land situated at Lyari is vet to be transferred in the
narne of the Company and it is also not in the possession of the Company. The valuation
of the lands situated ar Lashella and Lvari was carded out by lgbal A. Nanjee & Co. an
August 15, 200% on the market value hasis. The fair value of the land at Lasbella and
Lyari has been determined by the valuer at Bs, 10,12 million and RBs, Nil respectively,
During the year, the company negotiated a transaction for the sale of land situated at
Lasbella at a price of Bs 6.8 million, however the transaction is yet to be finalised. The
management is of the view that the above sale price is a better estimate of fair value of
the land and accordingly the same has been used (0 revalue the investment property
at June 30, 2005,

Note 2005 2004
{Rupees in "(H0')
Balance al the beginning of the year - B096 1.210
(Loss) / gain on fair value adjustment 33 (1,29 BAG
Balance at the end of the year 6,800 8.0596
7. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS :
Investment - others
Held-to-maturiry
10 years' Defence Saving Certificates -
of face value of Rs.350,000/- 7.1 1,231 1.047
MAvailable for sale
Coted securities T2 681 710
1oz 1,757

7.1 The effective rate of returmn on Defence Saving Certificates ranges from 16.032%
o 18.04% (2004: 18.04%) per annum,

7.2 Represents 10,000 (2004; 10,000) ordinary shares of Rs, 104 each of Balan Castings

Limited. The movement in available-for-sale investment is as lollows :

Balance at the beginning of the vear 710 595
{Losshgain on fair value adjustment {29) 115
Balance at the end of the year 681 710

&8 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES - SECURED
Chers - Considered good

Emplovees
Loans 8.1 i 20
Advances 144 370
144 3490

8.1 Represents interest free loan o executives and emplayees for purchase of matorcars,
motor eveles, home appliances, house building and for stall wellare in accordance
with the Cmnl!])anf,r's palicy. These loans are recoverable in four years in equal
monthly installments. These loans are secured against the retirement benefits of

employees,
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Mot -EEI']E 2004
9. LONG TERM DEPOSITS (Rupees in '000')
Security depaosits against leased assets .:_ {'ﬁi G4
Trade deposits 1801 1,637

2,601

ﬁ@i"ﬁ 1

10, DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation comprises:
Deferred tax assets arising in respect of

Pravision for stares and spares
Provision for stock-in-trade
Pravision for doubtful debts
Provision for doubtful advances
Pravision for doubtful receivahles
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for warranty
Liahilities against asseis subject o finance lease
Deferred tax liability arising due 1o
Accelerated tax depreciation 20,030 2,983
3757 635
11. STORES, SPARE PARTS AMD LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 2,907 2,441
Spare parts T - 26,181
Loose tools 1,087 A06
35,648 29,028
Less: Provision for slow moving stores and spare parts 5,300 4,568
30,348 24,460
11.1 Movement in provision is as follows: = e
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,568 1,357
Pravision made during the year 30 4,000 3,211
Reversal of provision 30 (3.268) -
Balance at the end of the year _ -"-:ﬁ:-iﬂm" 4,568
12, STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw material and components 53,676
Work-in-process 47.910
Finished goods 4,490
a Scrap stock 13,862
., 114,958
= Stock-in-transit 26,928
= 146,866
= Less: Provision [or slow moving stock 7,332

128,314

MY




Note 2005 2004
12.1 Movement in provision is as follows: {Rupees in '000°)
Balance at the inmnﬁ[ the vear 7.552 2,263
Provision marde during the year 30 849 5,289
Reversal of provision 30 -
Balance at the end of the year 7.552
13, TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED
Considered good 87,943 79,503
Considered doubitfl ] Egg 3,273
Less: Provision for doubtful debes 13.1 hGO | 3.273

~ B7.943 79,503

13.1 Movement in provision is as [ollows;

Balance at the beginning af the year 3,2?;3 2,273
Provision made during the year 32 - 1,000 3,200
Reversal of provision 32 {3.704) -
569 5473
Less: Write offs during the year = 2,200
Balance at the end of the year _ h6g 3,273

14, LOANS AND ADVAMNCES

Loans - secured
Considered good o
Current portion long term loans 19 4

Advances - unsecured
Considered good i

For expenses 117

To employees G359

Ta suppliers 20,713
Current portion of long term advances 77
Letters of credit fee and margin 1.834

[ 24,000

Considered doubstful ' - 433
Less: provision for doubtful advances 14.1 _ = || 433

14.1 Movement in provision is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 433 433
Less: Write ofls during the vear 433
Balance at the end of the year o =
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15,

16,

17.

18,

Note 2005 2004
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS (Rupees in 000"
Deposits 710 1,010
Prepayments 619 204
1,329 1,304
INTEREST ACCRUED
Accrued return on term deposit 18 2,850 18,272
OJTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Receivable against scrap sales =y 1,282
Others 147 120
147 1,702
Considered doubtful | =il 629
Less: Provision for doubiful receivables 7.1 = 629
D U AN [
17.1 Movement in provision is as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 629 29
Less: Write offs during the year G629 -
Balance ai the end of the year . - 624

TERM DEPOSIT

In 1992, the company placed a sum of Rs.50.84 million as a shorl term sit with the
then Mehran Bank Limited {MBL) which has since been taken-over by MNational Bank
of Pakistan (NBP) under a Scheme of mlfarmrion implemented by the State Bank of
Pakistan. Following this, NBP desired to link the said deposit and return accrued thereon
in settlement aminﬁlscharge of outstanding dues from certain parties which had related
party relationship with certain former directors of the company. However, the company
refuted the claim of NBP, asserting that the said deposit was never placed or intended
to be a security or pledge against any indebtedness of the company or any other third
- In response o a suit I%laed b company in 1996 against MBF the Honourable
Bﬂgﬂ Courl of Sindh {the Court) directed NBP to deposit with the Mazir of the Court,
an amount of Rs.83.98 million, comprising the principal amount of depaosit together
with return accrued thereon upto Seplember 25, 1996 of Rs.33.14 million, so thal
nding the final decision of the case, the amount may be invested in income bearing
sovernment de posit schemes.

Dwring the year ended June 30, 2005, the company and NBP reached a compromise
a nt. As a result, the amount of term deposit and acerued return thereon anmurtir&g
o Rs. 50,840 and 59246 million respectively has been setiled against the company's
share of the EAD loan of Rs. 158.76 as mentioned in note 26 1o these financial statements,
The return accrued during the vear amounting o Rs. 40.974 has been disclosed under
the head gain on liligation seilement as mentioned in note 36 0 these linancial stalements,




Mote 2005 2004
{Rupees in '000')
19. BANK BALAMCES
Current accounts Zﬁﬁfﬁ 32,647
Deposit accounts 19.1 3,039 2776
26712 35.423

19.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 4 to T {2004: 3 to 5} percent per anmim.
20, ISSLED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2005 2004
MNumber of ardinary
~ shares of Rs.10/- each
9,276,000 9,276,000 Fully paid in cash 92,760 42,760
| zﬁlﬂ 000 2,319,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 23,190 23,190
11,595, 11,595,000 115,950 115,950

' £l = A 2

21, LIABILITIES AGAIMNST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Represent finance leases entered into with leasing companies for plant and machinery
and vehicles. Total lease rentals due under various lease agreements aggregate to
Rs.39.522 million {2004: Rs.9.232 million) and are payable in equal monthly installments
latest by 2008, Overdue rental payments are subject to an additional charge upto 3
percent per month. Taxes, repairs, replacement and insurance costs are to be borne by
the company. In case of termination of agreement, the company has to pay the entire
rent for the unexpired period. Financing rates of approximately 8 to 12 (2004: 8 to 17}
percent per annum have heen used as discounting factor. Purchase options can be
exercised by the lessee, by paying 10 percent of the leased amount. The movement in
the finance lease liability is as follows: 2005

Related -
Security !]:agtg Others Total

Minimum  Present Minimum  Present Minimum  Present
Payments  value  Payments  value  Payments  value

---------------------- (Rupees in "DO0) -——coommmemee e
Within ode year ATI8 3557 14226 11497 17.8944 15054
After one year but not
more than live vears 767 738 25415 23710 Z26.182 24468

Total minimune lease payments 4,485 4,315 39641 35207 44126 39,522
Less: Amount representing

finance charges 170 - 4.434 - 4,604
Present value of minimum

lease payments 4315 4,315 35207 35207 39522 30522
Less: Carrent portion 3,557 3,557 11497 11497 15054 150564

708 T8 23710 23710 24468 24,468
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22.

23

2004

Related party -
Security Pa;smg Others Total

Minimum Present Minimum  Present Minimum  Present
Payments  value Payments  value Payments  value

------------------------- f:RLIPIEE'S in 1{]:II:I} T e b

Within one year 4570 4138 7493 77 5363 4916
After orwe yvear ut not

more than five 4,485 4.318 = = 4,485 4.318

Total minimum lease payments 8036 5455 TH3 77T 9845 5232
Less: Amount representing

fmance charges 61 - 18 - G617 -
Present value of mindmum

lease payments 8455  B.455 7 777 9232 923
Less: Current portion 4,13 413 T TIT 49168 4915

4,316 4,316 - - 4,316 4,316
LOMNG TERM DEPOSITS Kibia 2005 afiid
{Rupees in "0007)
Deposit from employees 194 267
Less: Current portion 106 95
1 &8 172

Re: ni interesi free deposits received from emplovees, The amount will be adjusiable
the period of three 1o five years against book value of the vehicles and generators.

TRADE AND (THER PAYABLLS

Credirors i 3413: 8,451
Murabaha finance 23.1 z? 24,468
Bills ayable t. -
liahilities 14,501
Aﬂvance from customers f.’i"'ﬂ,ﬁ:? 14,328
Retention money and securily deposits 2,063 2,219
Compensated absences 'B- EEE- i,066
Interest on overdue loan 7,218
Guaraniee commission = 5,039
Exchange risk fec = 4,671
Payable io gratuity fund 23.2 1,202 603
Wahle to provident fund 459 510
arkers' Profit Participation Fund 233 SrasT 3,880
Workers' Welfare Fund st bl 2,083
Unclaimed dividend 2,081 1,996
Pn:]n_lwsmn for wareanty 19,395 -
Others 1,280 8203
112 :ﬁﬁi' 96,842

23.1 Represents utilised portion of murabaha finance fmhl}r of Rs.55 million {2[]-[]4
Bs.55 million} availed from a local bank, This I‘a-:::hg carries a profit rale al six
months Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate (KIBOR) plus 200 basis points (bps). (2004;
4 1o 8 peccent per anmum). The purchase price is repayable by December 31, 2005
and is secu way of hypothecation ranking paripassu over the Company's
stock-in-trade and tracde debis.




Note 2005 2004
{Rupees in "(00')
23.2 Payable to gratuity fund

Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit abligation 149,035
Fair value of plan assets 21,731
Surplus (63 ;
Unrecognised actuarial gain 1,83 3.299
: !‘@ E G003
Amount recognised in profit and loss account ———
Current service cost 1,783 1,382
Interest cost L 943
Recognised actuarial gain (39)
Expected return on plan assets (1418
BGT
Mavement in net liability ; T
Balance at the beginning of the vear 603 366
Charge for the year 1454 867
1 , : 1,233
Contributions during the vear (855) (630
Balance at the end of the year 1202 603
Actual return on plan assets -
Expected return on plan assets 1,956 1,419
Actuarial gain on ;Hhm assels _ 6&s -
Actual return on plan assers _ 2,644 1,419

The principal actuarial assumptions used for the ptlfpose of the valuation

Rate of salary increase 10 percent @ percent
Rate of return 10 percent 9 percent
Discount rate 10 percent % percent

23.3 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,501
Allocation for the year 35 3,886

5. TRT
Interest on funds wiilised in the company's business34 = EE%
Less: Paymenis made during the year 1,963

Balance at the end of the year
24, MARK-UP ACCURED

Short term borrowings 387 91
Murabaha ._:'4‘[]2 443
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25,

26.

27,

Note 2005 2004
{Rupees in "000")
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Short term munning finance - secured 251 10,804 36,274

25.1 The facilities for short term running finance available from various banks amount
to Rs. 115 million (2004: Rs.60 million). The rate of mark-up on these finances
range from three month KIBOR plus 150 basis points to six months KIBOR plus
275 hasis poinis (2004: 16 0 25 paisas per rupee ane thousand per day).
famhhes are repa able on various dates latest by December 31, 2005 and are

pothecation ranking pari passu charge over co s stocks
and lradf: df:hts F h%]:r a bank has a regisiered charge :;%f:r the ﬂxm:ms of the
company amounting to Rs.0.717 million,

25.2 The Tacilities far apening letters of credit, letters of guaramees anc shipﬂlng
uarantees amounting to Rs. 160 million (2004: Rs.72 I'I'J'll]ll]]'l] Rs.7.5 million
2004: Rs. EEII'JJHIDII; and Rs.15 million [14 Nil) respectively, of which Rs.63.907

million {2004: Bs 27 464 million), Rs.2.72 million ?Ecmq é.l.ﬂﬁ? millicn) amel
Rs.13.3 million {2004: Nil) rPSPEE[I\'El}T remained umutilized as of the balance

sheet date.
COVER DUE PORTION OF LONG TERM LOAN — secured
2005 2004
FAD Loan Rescheduled  Total  FAD Loan Re-scheduled  Total
accrued accrued
- nterest interest

- - 66,656 19,195 85,851

The long term loan from EAD has been settled under the COMpromise agreement as
mentioned in note 18 to these financial statements. As a result a sum of Rs. 156.2 million
was indtially determined by the Mazir of High Court of Sindh as the amount of principal
and accrued return on the term it. The company paid the differential amount of
Rs. 2,56 million to National Bank of Pakistan {NEP] thus making up a total of Rs. 158.76
million paid by MBP o EAD. The company's share of the above mentioned payment
made by MBP to EAD comprised of the principal and acerued interest therean amounting
to s, G6.656 million and Rs. 43 271 million respectively. The above accrued interest
includes an amount of Rs. 12.187 million that has been accrued during the year as
mentioned in note 36 (o these financial statements. Subsequently it transpired that further
sum of Rs. 2.85 million was payable on the funds lying with the Nazir of High Court
of Sindh as returmn on term deposits which was pal}-;l to NBP as per the compromise
agreement. This increased the total amount of term deposit and accrued return thereon
to Bs. 159.05 million, as a result, the company now  has a receivable from NEP of
Bs. 2.85 million which has been shown as accrued refumn in note 16 o these financial
statements.

2005 2004
PROWVISION FOR TAXATION [Rupees in 000"
Income tax — net 2T, 594 A
Sales tax payable E.Eﬂl 396




Note 2005 2004
{Rupees in '000')
2B, CONTINGEMNCIES AND COMMITMENTS
28,1 Contingencies
(i Claim of MEF against the
company noi accounted for 18 & 26 - 61,027
{iiy Indemmnity bonds issued to the
collector of customs -
against imported raw material - 5499 19,457

(i) The Privatization Commission {PC} has filed a suit against Abdul Qadir
Tawwakal, Saleem 1. Kapoorwala, NBP and has made the Company also a
party for the recovery of Rs. 207 million against sale of shares of the Company.
The sale price has been guaranieed by NEP. The Company has not
acknowledged the said claim since it has not issued any counter guarantees
and is not a party to the agreement between Abdul Qadir Tawwakal, Salim
L. Kapoorwala and PC for the sale of shares and neither the Company requested
MEBP 1o issue any guaraniee in this regard. Subsequent (o the year ended June
30, 2003, NBP has made the payment to PC amounting to Bs. $1.25 million
and filed a suit for the recovery against the Company. The management and
its legal counsel are hopeful that the ultimate outcome of the matter will be
in the Company's favour. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary
in these flinancial statements in respect of the above matter,

28.2 Commitments

788,983 533,451

29.1 Includes scrap sales of Rs.34.04 million (2004: Rs.11.94 million).

Note 2005 2004
{Rupees in '000°)

Letters of Credit issued by commercial banks _ EE:S@E 45,036 &
20. TURNOVER 5
Local sales 29.1 rﬂjﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁ G10, 6498 E
Less: sales tax 119077 81,501 =
779218 520,197 =
Export sales - 9785 4,254 o




MNate 2005 2004
30, COST OF SALES (Rupees in "0007
Baw material and components consumed IR
Opening stock - Raw material ‘53:&1"_&; 48,846
- Scrap _ “a: - 7.264
55,110
Purchases 263,405
Less: Closing stock - Raw material 533,676
- Serap 13,862
67,538
251,977
Salaries, wages and benefits 30.1 58,946
Stores, spare parts and loose wols consumed 36,598
Fuel and power 22,504
Depreciation 5.1.2 12,832
Amortisation of intangible assel 5.2 1,517
Staff transportation 3,377
Repairs and maintenance 1,876
Services rendered by contractors 6,842
Travelling and conveyance 1,413
Insurance 1,013
Commmunicalion 042
Vehicle running expenses 840
Entertainment 540
Printing and stationery 184
Subscription 122
Eent, rates and taxes 34
Provision [or slow moving el
- Stores, spare parts and loose toals 11.1 4,000 3.211
- stock-in-trade 12.1 - B49 5,289
Reversal of provision [or slow moving '
- Stares, spare parts and loose toals 11.1 -
- stock-in-trade 121 -
Chhers T06
160,874
Manufacturing cost 112,853
Work-in-process - Opening 45,427
- Closing (47,9100
(2,183}
Cost of goods manulactured | I8.616 ;
Finished goods - Cpening [ 44907 1870
- Closing {4,490)
380
410,750

30.1 Salaries, wages and benelits

30,1.1 These include Rs. 2,642 million (2004; Rs.1.77 r_rulhon} in respect of stall
retirement henefits,

30.1.2 These include Rs.5.567 million (2004: Rs.4.22 million) in respect of bonus
o employees,
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Crhers i ’1

Mote 2005 2004
in 000
1. DISTRIBUTION COSTS (Papees }

Salaries, and benefits 31.1 1,285 1,160
Carriage and lorwarding 5,601 4,935
Depreciation 512 488 855
Travelling and conveyance 215 55
Stafl transportation 51 31
Communication 102 112
Insurance 41 42
Advertisement 891 194
Entertainment 33 30
Vehicle running expenses 147 128
Printing and stationery 9 28
Provision for wamanty 9,395 =
Chthers 919 509

19764 8,080
31.1 Salaries, wages and henefits % -

31.1.1 These include Rs.0.043 million (2004: Es.0.075 million} in respect of staff
retirement benefits.
31.1.2 These include Rs.0.16 million {(2004: Bs.0.12 million) in respect of bonus
to employees.
32 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEMSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 32.1 17,101 15,266
Depreciation 5.1.2 - 3.956 3,422
Services rendered by contractors 2,087 2,122
Utilities 2,574 2568
Vehicle running expenses 2@;{9 1,583
Communication 1,329 1,310
Reint, rates and taxes Jﬁ%g 55
Travelling and conveyance 4 574
Cﬂrpuraﬁ expensﬂ:e}r 613 763 i
Entertainment i 755 =
Auditors’ remuneration 322 665 535 i
Legal and professional charges 229 4490 3]
Repairs and maintenance 284 108 =
Insurance 3529'9 386G o
Siaff transportation 523 375 =
Subscription 100 2493 =
Printing and stationery 335 261 =
Advertisement 33 B2 =
Provision for doubifisl debis 13.1 1,000 3,200 -
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 13.1 (zﬁ 2 4




32.1 Salaries, wages and benefits

32.1.1 These incluce Rs.0.58 million (2004: Rs.0.68 million) in respect of staff
retirement henefits,

32.1.2 These include Rs.2.21 million {2004: Bs. 1,68 million) in respect of bonus
o employees.

322 Auditors' remuneration

Note 2005 2004
(Rupees in '000°)
Audit fee agg 275
Fee for limited scope review 100 100
Tay services 125 75
Audit fee of employees' lunds 40 25
Out of pocket expenses _ i Gl
= 663 5335
33, OTHER INCOME

{Loss) / gain on adjustment of o
investment property o fair value fi ;.129%1 886G

Gain on sale of operating property, D
plant and equipment 5.1.3 282 1,491

Liabilities no longer payable — writien back 5,039 -
Dividend income G
Accrued return on Delence Saving Certilicales 158
Prafit on deposit accounts 948
Others 33
2,726
34, FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term borrowings 1,867
Finance lease charges 1,258
Interest on Workers' Prolit Participation Fund 23.3 62
Bank char?es and excise duty 222
Exchange loss - net 3z

35, OTHER CHARGES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 233 7987 3,886
Workers” Wellare Fund 3038 1,258
5,144

36, GAIN OM LITIGATION SETTLEMENT

Rewrn on term deposils 18
Interest on EAD loan 206

-
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Note 2005 2004
{Eu i 000"
37, TAXATION P
Current 37.1 24,050
Deferred Iﬁﬁllf_i]
37.1 Current

During the gear ended June 30, 2005, the company has opted for final tax under
Clause 40 Part 1V of Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
Subsequently the Finance Act 2005 has withdrawn the above mentioned option
with retrospective effect. The company intends o avail the opiion of final taxation,
as mentioned above, already filed with the CBR. However, as a result of above
mentioned amendment, the company has created a provision for current taxation
based on normal rates of taxation as a matter of prudence. Had the company not
crealed the above mentioned provision, the tax charge lor the current year would
have been lower and the profit for the year would have been higher by Rs. 10.257

million,
Relationship between tax nse and accounting profit
P expe ng 2005 00
{Rupees in '000')

Profit before taxation 148,586 72,569
Applicable tax rate 35% 35%
Tax al the above rale 52,005 25,309
Tax effect of income /| expenses that are exempt/ -

not allowable in determining taxable income 1677 {2,704)
Tax effect of dividend income taxed ar a lower rate (15) (L&)
Tax effect on export sales taxed at a lower rate {Sg‘r% (127
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax {3,101} {650)
Tax expense for the year BOLTH7 21,894

37.2 Prior N

The assessments for the assessment vears 19891990 and 1990-1991 are pending
hearing before the Honourable High Court of Sindh, Karachi, The management
estimates that the additional Hability if any, that could arise should the above
mentioned cases be decided against the company are as lollows:

Assessment Years Amount
(Rupees in 000}

15989-19%90 Fully provided

1990-199 v 0,964

The abave mentioned cases had been decided in favour of the company by the
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT). Further the income tax department (ITD)
preferred an appeal against the decision of the [TAT o the Honourable High Court
of Sindh, Karachi. However the management is confident that the above mentioned
cases would be decided by the Honourable High Court of Sindh, Karachi in the
company's favour, Therelore, no further provision {or the same is made in these
financtal statements during the year,
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38. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the company, which are

based on:
Profit for the year alter taxation 98,389 ! 50,675
‘Number of shares
{in000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 11;595 11,595
. Rupees
Basic earnings per share B4y 4.37
39, CASH GENERATED FROM QOPERATIONS
Note 2005 2004
{Rupees in "000)
Profit belore taxation 148,586 72,564
Adjustments for
Lepreciation 17.108
Amortisation 1,517
Financial charges 3,441
Provision for staff retirement benelits 2,526
Pravision for slow moving stock 3,211
Provision lor slow moving stores spare parts and loose tools 5,289
Pravision for doubtful debis 3,200
Pravision for compensated absences 1,270
Provision {or warranly -
Profit on deposit accounts {98)
Acerued return on Defence Saving Cerlilicates {158)
Dividend income {60}
Returmn an tenn deposit .
Liahilities no longer payable -
Loss { {gain} on revalualion of investment property (B86)
Gain an sale of fixed assets i1,491)
44,870
107,430
Operating profit before working capital changes
Waorking capital changes
(Increasel/decrease in current assets
o Stores, spare parts and loose wols {3.020)
£ Stock in-rade (40,459)
£ Trade dehts (20,262)
= Loans and advances (11,266
e Trade Dleposits and short term prepayments 2,610
Oher receivables 2648

(69,749

Ay




Mote Nﬂﬂﬂﬁ 2004
{Rupees in '0007)

2,825
4

39,614

Increasedidecrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provision for taxation - Sales tax

S &l
—[74,9006)

40, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances 19 ; ﬁé&l 35,423
Short term borrowings 25 o

(36,274)
B *1539% {851)

41, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
41,1 Interest'mark-up rate risk exposure

Yield / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will
fluctuate due 1o changes in the market gleln:l.n’ mark-up rates, Sensitiviey fo vield /
markup rate risk arises from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities that
mature or reprice in a given pennd The company manages these mismaiches

through risk management stralegies,
The Company is exposed to interest £ mark-up risk in respect of following:
e st | Mark o bearisg o Inser st | Mk o bearing
Hiecrive mnmq. Mamrin: Moty Matority  Manriny

eld | fmmww upto  fromone . aher Jumes 300,

NPT mrwt Tive vears I'I\‘\:reﬂr Sebied  oneyear Ave years Bve vears Ssbdoml 3005

% L T —— (R b thousandp e
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Long enn fivestoents 16 18 S S . . 681 681 1812
Lang term depusis 3 . é1a . é1a AT - niER 100
Trade debls : : : . BTEM3 : . BTEMZ BTAM3
Laans : : : : 1 : : 1 1
Trade deposks - - - - ] - - ] ]
Tnkere aceried - - - - M0 - - EHSD B0
Colbser ricetalils - - - - ur - - ur T
Tenm depasit
ek Lalasves 47 3439 - - 30134 B3ET3 - - RIETS BETIZ ok

3 [E T ABENI534E LIE2 BB 117,206 1 =
FISANCIAL LIABILITIES G
Liahilitics against sssers o
subject to finance lesse 8- 12 13454 244068 - aheE - - - - aheE oy
T sl -
ik payalides HBOR + 200 bps 25,700 . . ERT00 STA3 . . STABS B3,133 ]
Markup accrued -~
ua short lerm barrow Ings - - - - TED - - TED TED
KIROR +
Short term bomedngs (150 - 200 bps L0804 - - LA - - - - LA
51588 24463 . TE026 58293 . -~ 5E3% 13213

Net Neamcial assels’
Nealbaliiiesh 2005 (4E.5180 (22 618) < (TLAET) 5T.1E0 L1EE 6Bl REOES (12.154)

et flmmcdal assers!
lEabalitiosh #0104 [ e 1] < L0 IEE 4182 1,340 TIO AR0EE (6T 2300
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41.2 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting
date if counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Company
attempts to control credit risk associated with the carrying amount of its receivables
by monitoring credit exposures, limitng iransactions with specific costomers and
continuing assessment of credit worthiness of such customers.

41.3 Liguidity risk management

Liguiclity risk reflects an enterprise’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments.
The Company follows an eflective cash management (o ensure availability
of funds and (0 take appropriate measures for new reguirements,

41.4 Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due o
transactions with foreign suppliers and customers. Receivables and payables exposed

to foreign currency risks are not covered through foreign ex forward cover
coniracis as the management is of the opinion that the cost of the forward cover
would exceed the benefirs.

41.5 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial
statermnents approximate to their fair value,

42, REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
42.1 Aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements are as follows:

------------------------- {Rupees in 000

CHIEFEXECUTVE  DIRECTORS TOTAL

2005 2004 | 2005 2004 2005 2004
Remuneration 1,746 1,746 3,766 3,766 5512 5512
Housing 786 786 1,695 1,605 2481 2481
Retirement benefirs 608 314 979 797 1,587 1.111
Bonus 582 436 1,255 942 1837 1,378
Medical expenses 3 62 187 98 226 160
Utilities 175 175 394 393 560 568
Leave fare assistance - 418 - I 12 430 12

(4354 3519 8288 7703 12642 11222
Number = 1 A 3 4

42.2 In addition the Chiel Executive, directors and certain executives are also provided
with [ree use of the Company's maintained cars, household stlems and other benefits
in accordance with their terms of employment,

42.3 Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for fee to two directors was
Rs. 52,0004 (2004: two directors Rs. 24,0000,

424 Due o amendment in fourth schedule of Companies Credinance, 1984, number
of executives has changed from 32 1o nil and their rermuneration from Bs.12.650
million to Bs.Nil.




43,

44.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

gate transactions made by the mmpanlﬁivuﬂng

the year with the related parlies were as follows: 2005

Assets  Lease Assets Contributions Sale of

acquired  remdals  acquired  fostalf  wehicles
under  paid under  refirement

leasing bargain  benefits
Names of the related parties arrangement purchase option
s ~ {Rupees in DI e eeee
Security Leasing (Common directorship) - 3,990 80
Stall retivernent benefit plans - - - 1.817

T83

Mr. Siddique Memon {Chairman) - - - -
T 39E0 C hR0 TRIT TR

Related party with which the company did not have
any transactions during the yvear is as follows:

- Dymamic securities (Common directorship / shareholding) —
Assets  Lease Asseds Contribotions Sale of
acquired  repdals  acquired  to staff  vehicles
under — paid under  refirement

leasing Cg&argain benefits
arrangenient s oplion
Mames of the related parties i - ;
e ——— {Rupees in T} - e
Security Leasing (Common directorship) 3,196 6,036 705 . .
Stafl retirement benefit plans . . . 4,130
Mr. Badruddin A. Ali
{General manager supply and services) - - - - 140
Tvir. Shaikh Muhammad Igbal
{General manager sales) 121

All the transactions with related parties have taken place at arm's length price except
for the sale of vehicle to key management personnel at book value as per the company's
policy.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 2005 SO
Units in thousand
Plant capacity 376 376

Actual production ~ 731 547
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45.

4,

47.

44.1 The original machinery provided by the Cerman supplier had been determined for
annmal prochuction capacity ai the dme of installation. Careently the anmual i
in three shills has increased the capacity. Further, over the period, additions to

plant and machi have heen made, new presses were also installed during the
yﬂar due to which the actual prnductmn has exceeded the plant capacity.

MNUMBER CF EMPLOYEES 2005 2004
Mumber of employees al year end 310 310

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR [SSUE

These linancial siatements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directars of
the Company on 23-4-05.

CORRESPOMNDING FIGURES

Due 1o cerlain changes made by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
in the Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance vide SEO 58%{1)/2004 dated July 5. 2004,
previous years ligures have been rearranged or reclassified wherever necessary for the
purpose of camparison.

i} Property, plant and equipment {Intangible fixed asset and CWIP) and Intangible
assel have been reclassified and shown as Fixed assets.

i) Tangible fixed assets and Capital Work in Progress have been reclassified and
shown as propenty, plant and equipment,

it}  Income tax receivable have been reclassilied and shown as Tax refunds due [rom

Government,

vy Loan, advances, frade deposits and prepayments within current asseis has heen
bifurcated between loans and advances, and trade deposits and prepayments,

vl Creditors, accrued and other Labilities have been reclassified and shown as trade
aned other payables,

viy  Accrued mark-up shown under Accrued Liabilities has been reclassified and shown
as Accrued Mark-up separately.

vii)  Unclaimed Dividend has been ceclassified and shown under trade and other
payables,

viil) Bemuneration of executives have been restated due o amencment in the definition

of executive,
ixp  Murabaha finance has been reclassilied and shown under trade and other payables,

In addition to the above, comparative information has also been restated in order o
comply with the change in accounting policy as explained in note 4.1,

Cither material changes for betier presentation are as follows:




Reclassification Rechssification  (Rupees in

Lomponents ~ from i S
Advances lo employees  Advances Long term advances 144 370
Advances to employees  Advances Current portion of ggﬁrc 77

lomg term advances
Advanees to suppliers  Loans and advances  Stock in transit 3%#2& 26,928

Mark-up on Finance under Mark-up accrued 402 443
murhabha financing miarh-up arrangement —

48 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Board of Directors has proposed a cash dividend of B, 15% per share (2004 ; 15%)
amounting to Rs. 17.393 million (2004 : 17.393 million) and bonus shares in the rion
of 15 ordinary shares per 100 ordinary shares held (2004 : NIL) amounting to s, 17,303
million {2004 ; Rs. NIL) at its meeting held on Sepiember 23, 2005 for approval of the
members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Ocrober 24, 2005, These fAnancial
statements do not reflect this appropriation as explained in note 4.1,

48, GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off o the nearest thousand rupes,

MUHAMMAD SIDTIOUE MEMOMN RAZAK H. M. BENGALI
Chairman Chief Executive

Karachi, September 23, 2005
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ASSETS
Non Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Invesiment Praoporties

Long Term investments
Long-tenm loans & advances
Lomg-term depasits
Deferred Tax asset

Current Assets

Stores. spare parts & loose tools
Stock-in-rade

Trade debis

Loans amd advances

Trade deposits and short lenm prepayments

Interest accned

Other receivables,

Term deposit

Income tax refunds due from the
government - net

Bank Balances

EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Auwthorised Capital

15,000,000 Crd, shases of Bs. 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid up Capital
Reserve

MNon Current Liahilities
ainst assels sub to

Long term Deposits
Current Liabilities

Trade and otler J:a}rables
Isl-h'[u;jrk-up acl?ue
ri term bo

Current pnmmw:hes

against assets subject o

finance lease £ P
Current portion of loig tefm depo
overdue porlicn of lang term laan
Provision for taxation

20010

148,240

2001

145,467
7B

13.040
08,796
36,875
4,031
1612
18,272
q1.722
50 840

13.708

25,920/

15.654

0171

2002

148,655
T.210

2003

144,508
7210 8.006

| BALANCE SHEET

Rupees in ‘000
2000 2005

arl7eq
423,042

390 745
190,655

130,000

130,000

130,000

150,000 150,000

e
3

8157
344

158,106
A1

22174
730

e
UTE AN

13.482
7494

i
TRO.B04

e
17,254

G.558
“155

4316
172

ana44
225
7.048

12.850
#5.831

LaT a1y

123047

81,170

380
16,0249
12,196
#5.831
TOE R3S

0085 887

aE]
411
11,745

16,385

#5851
1,581

i, 3492
400
21,510

13.188

#5851
1,302

LHZ 042

479,340




Turnowver - net

Cest of Sales

Carss Profil

Distribwtion Cost
Administration Experses

Other Income

Finance Cost
Dither Charges

Gair on Jitigation settlement
Profit before Taxation
Taxation

Met profit for the year
Basic Eaming Per Share (Rupees|

Licqueility & Leverage Ratios
- Current Ratios
- Cuick Ratios
- Liability as a % of Tatal Assets
- Diebst Bouity Ratio

Expuily Ratias
- Break up value per share (Rs)
- Diiviclend as a % of Capital
- Dividend Yield Ratio
- Diwidend per share {Ks)
- Dividend payout ratio (26
Profitability Eatios
SR
- Operating Profit %
- Prodit hefore Tax%
- Profin after Tax %

- [mventory Turnover Ratio
- Debdor Tumowver Ratic
- Return an capital emploved
- Interest Cover Ratio
- Fixed Assels Turnover Ralio
- Price Earing Ratio

Earnirngs per Share [Rs)

Flant Capacity Litilisation (%]

Market value per share
- Year end market price per share
- High Price during the year
- Low Price during the vear

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

D00~ #001  FO0E C F00A

336,801 370747 267874 365040 533451 788,983
235,176 261,764 20448) 280,760 410750 602,890
101725 I0B0B3 63403 84280 122701 186003
7.629][ 10,120|[ 6.724|[ 7.487|[ 8080
28600 | 20715 | 26,680 | 34305 | 36103
36319 30835 d3dI3  A1882 44273
5864 1,509 1,251 300 2728
1, L] FI.391 42 THE #1154 13
3,038 4,503 0,368 4,776 3441
3507/ | 3332|| 1125)| 1.967)[ s144)]
7445 8325 10,49 743 B.585
BIEZIS T BZAZE T EESE COGDAT T TESEE (IR
63825 62422 20838 36045 72569 148586
(13.810) (12,843 873 (11.000) {(21.894) (5D,
50015 40,579 20711 _ 25045 50,875
131 1.28 L&7 216 437 _ 849
SIGNIFICANT RATIOS
2000 _ 2001 _ gple _ 9003 _ gop4 _ 2008
T7z|[ Les|[ L78|[ Leo|[ L73|[ 2ar
1.01 0.83/| 097 1.10 100 | 82
30.30|| 44.54|| 30.20)| 38.76|| 4196/ a2
317)| a5 484]| 22 136} 6.1
22.19][ 2347 24.03|[ 2188|[ 27.36
sz50) | 2500/ 1250 | 2000 | 15.00
14.61)| 1008 502/ 1.70|| 5433
3.25 2,60 1.25 200 1.50
75.34) | 5846 66.75|| opsol| a4.a2
an o 24 23 2 T
10 10 11 12 15 AT
19 17 # 10 14 g
15 13 8 7 ] 12|
238 L&7 1.36|[ ZI3|[ ZE1|[ 283
7.02 7.08 .15 £.60 751 o4z
25.00 | 23.00 700/| 1200/ 2300/ 3700
i7.21 13.5 | 322 855 2200 | 1864
227|| 258 1.80|| z47|| 369|460
516/  532][ 1.28]| 782]| 644|] 418
[ a31)[ 428 [ Ler)[__zi16) [ 4.7 [ 843]
| 61| 63| | 62| | o4 [ 145] [ 184
2z.25|[ 22.75|[ enao|[ 1na0)[ 2&15|[ a5l
36.00) | 2600 | 2375|| 35.75|| 4745 | 3530
2000/ | 17.55/| 1800|| 21.50)| 26.90!| 27.00
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